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PANZER LEADER Q&A

This Q&A listing provides a comprehensive listing of all known Q&A for PANZER LEADER as they appeared in the Avalon Hill General over the years since 1975.  Q&A are listed in order they were promulgated, a total of 83 questions (compared to 57 questions generated for PANZER LEADER’s cousin, PANZERBLITZ).  Note a few of the Q&A change over time, with later answers being different from earlier rulings!

The Avalon Hill magazine “The General” in Volume 12, #1, Volume 12 #3, Volume 12, #4, Volume 12, #5, Volume 12 #6, Volume 20 #6, Volume 22 #3 all contained PANZER LEADER Q&A.

Questions, additions, comments send to Ryan Schultz at Oceanweather@aol.com.

* indicates changes, corrections, and / or additions to the existing rules.  This was only used in the first Q&A to come out on Volume 12. #1 of the General. 

Q&A
1. Situation #13: One German 37mm, instead of two (Volume 12, #1)

2. Situation #14: One German 37mm, instead of two (Volume 12, #1)

3. Situation #15: a. One German 37mm, instead of two.

                             b. 276VG-Change 4 trucks and one wagon to one truck

                             and four wagons. (Volume 12, #1)

4. Situation #18: Six German trucks instead of seven (Volume 12, #1)

5. Situation #20: Two German halftracks instead of three (Volume 12, #1)

6. The Hetzer Direct Fire illustration (p.17) is NOT doubled in its present location. (Volume 12, #1)

MOVEMENT

7. Q. May infantry units, using Quick-Time Speed or road movement, use CAT in the same player segment?

A. Yes, in both cases. (Volume 12, #1)

8. Q. When blocks are placed on beach hexes, do they preclude or delay amphibious landings on that hex?

A. No.  Vehicles landing on a block could not move further that turn however. (Volume 12, #1)

9*. Q. In what manner does the Recon HQ unit move?

A. It moves like a truck (similar to the M3 scout cars). (Volume 12, #1)

10. Q. May wagons cross green hex sides?

A. No.  They are vehicles. (Volume 12, #1)

DIRECT FIRE

11. *Q. The rules state that units in a stack may be attacked individually using direct fire.  Yet, when attacking enemy units on top of a friendly fort, “the die must be rolled twice, once for the enemy unit and once for the fortification.” Why can’t the enemy unit be attacked individually, ignoring the fort (regardless of whether it is enemy or friendly)?

A. It CAN be attacked individually (the wording of the rules is a hold-over from PANZERBLITZ!)  The next edition of the rules will incorporate the following change (XI.C.10.a): REPLACE the third sentence with: “Such enemy units may still be attacked.  Note, however, that in the cases where the enemy unit cannot be attacked individually (DF into a town hexes or CAT) two attacks using the normal AS for each are required; one against the enemy unit’s DS and one against the fort’s DS.  For IF attacks, merely treat the fort as another unit in the stack.” (Volume 12, #1)

12. Q. Rule VII.F.2.b (target predominance) is confusing.  If you can fire at individual units in a stack, what is the rule used for?

A. Target predominance is used when attacking several or all of the units in a hex as one combined, direct fire attack. (Volume 12, #1)

INDIRECT FIRE

13. Q. When using indirect fire against units in town hexes, is the AS divided evenly between the target units or are the defending units treated as one combined DS?

A. The indirect fire attack strength is divided as usual (combined defense strengths apply only to DIRECT fire, CAT and overrun attacks.)  Additionally, the AS is halved (units in town treated as armored targets) and “1” is added to the die roll. (Volume 12, #1)

14. Q. May naval and / or regular indirect fire attack unspotted (or unsighted) units by using Scatter Chart (p.6)?

A. NO!  Indirect fire may only be targeted (written down one or two turns in advance) into those hexes that are spotted or “can be seen into” at the time the indirect fire order is written.  The Scatter Chart is only used when friendly units that spotted or sighted the hex for the initial targeting are dispersed, move away or are otherwise no longer in LOS when the fire is resolved. (Volume 12, #1)

15. Q. I’m confused about indirect fire “targeting”.  Why can’t you fire at dispersed artillery units (C.3. p.6)?

A. To “target” a unit is to record a target for that unit to hit with indirect fire.  “Targeted” in these instances refers to the FIRING unit. (Ditto for statement 7.) (Volume 12, #1)

16. Q. May a unit be subjected to indirect fire and direct fire attacks in the same turn?

A. No. (Volume 12, #1)

OVERRUN

17. Q. May armored units overrun enemy units on permanent bridge hexes? On temporary bridge hexes?

A. Yes, in both cases. (Volume 12, #1)

18. Q. What is the PRECISE point at which combat is resolved in overrun attacks?

A. After all overrunning units involved in that specific overrun attack have executed their movement.  NOTE: When using the optional Opportunity Fire rule, a few problems arise when more than one unit attempts the overrun.  In cases where the ¼ MA criterion is reached when the overrunning unit enter a woods / town hex as its exit hex, the target unit cannot spot that hex for other units attempting Opportunity Fire until ALL enemy units have executed their movement and the overrun is resolved.  If the target unit is undispersed AFTER resolving the overrun, THEN the woods / town hex may be spotted for opportunity Fire. (Volume 12, #1)

19. Q. May units being overrun execute Opportunity Fire attacks against the units doing the overrun?

A.  Yes, provided the ¼ MA requirement is met before the attacking units enter the target unit’s hex.  If several units are doing the overrunning, the target unit may not OF after the first unit has executed its overrun movement. (Volume 12, #1)

TERRAIN EFFECTS CHART

20. *Q. The TEC states that, when firing on units on hilltops, the attacker is not required to halve his AS if adjacent to the target hex.  Rules VII.H.4 (p.8) however, states that the attacker is NOT halved when on another hilltop (no mention of being adjacent).  Which is correct?

A.  Whoops!  The rulebook is correct; the TEC is in error.  Delete the last line of that entry on the TEC and it will agree with the rules. (Volume 12, #1)

SPOTTING

21. *Q. If one unit in a stack of units fires and is spotted, then leaves the hex in the next movement phase, are the other units in the hex spotted?

A. No, except in two situations: 1) Indirect fire could be targeted into that hex while the spotted unit remains.  When it leaves the hex, the indirect fire is subject to “scatter.” 2) If the unit is in a town hex, all other units may (must) be fired upon also. (Volume 12, #1)

22. Q. If a “spotted” unit moves out of a hex and the hex is re-occupied in the same turn by different units, are those new units spotted?

A.  No, EXCEPT that any indirect fire previously targeted into that hex may still be applied to the units subject to “scatter.” (Volume 12, #1)

ENGINEERS

23. Q. If the vehicle assigned to an engineer is dispersed before the engineer unit has completed its task, must it wait until the vehicle is undispersed before to finish the job?

A. Yes.  Also, if the vehicle is destroyed, operations cannot be completed. (Volume 12, #1)

24. *Q. Is there any effect on mine or block removal if, during removal operations, an enemy unit enters the block hex itself?

A. Yes, the operations must be suspended until the enemy units move or are removed. (Volume 12, #1)

BRIDGES

25. *Q. If a bridge hexes are “treated as clear terrain for all purposes,” it becomes possible to move directly from one unconnected bridge hex to another (i.e. GRANCELLES) and thus overrun units on bridge hexes from other bridge hexes.  Correct?

A.  NO!!  Certain assumptions must be made.  Namely, bridge hexes are treated as clear terrain only when moving from one adjacent non-stream hex to another adjacent non-stream hex via a bridge hex. (Volume 12, #1)

26. Q. May the bridge carried by the Valentine bridge layer be attacked separately from the tank as a “passenger”?

A. No. (Volume 12, #1)

27. *Q.  How do you erect those portable truck and tank bridges?

A. While they do not appear in any scenario, feel free to apply these broad procedures to scenarios of your own design:

1. Tank and truck bridges may be transported by any truck or halftrack unit.  They do not have to unload in the river hex, but only in the hex adjacent to the construction hex.  They are unloaded like heavy artillery.

2. The two types of bridges are constructed in the following number of turns by the indicated number of engineer units:

*Truck Bridge: one engineer units, 12 turns to construct

*Tank Bridge: four engineer units, 36 turns to construct

3. Engineer units must remain in the construction hex for the required number of turns.  All units must remain undispersed or none may be used to construct the bridge.  If dispersed, engineer units may resume construction when undispersed.  If eliminated, they may be replaced with other engineer units with no loss of construction time.

4. Bridges may be attacked (as per X.C.4., p.12) during and after construction.

5. Tank bridges maybe used by any type of unit.  Truck bridges may only be used by personnel units, trucks, M3 scout cars, or Bren Carriers. (Volume 12, #1)

28. Q.  May infantry and engineer units CAT from a bridge hex to an adjacent bridge hex (i.e. in Grancelles)?

A.  Yes. (Volume 12, #1)

29. Q.  Do the bridges in hex A-V-7 and A-V-8 (Grancelles) count as one or two bridges in each hex for demolition purposes?

A. One – they’re small bridges anyway! (Volume 12, #1)

30. Q.  Can a vehicle cross a bridge if there are three wrecks on it?

A.  Yes – see VII.K.6. (p.9) (Volume 12, #1)

31. Q. May a vehicular units, when moving onto or off of a bridge hex, do so via any non-stream hexes or only the ones containing the roads?

A.  They may use any adjacent, legal, non-stream hex. (Volume 12, #1)

AIRPOWER

32. Q. May Fighter-bomber units execute Opportunity Fire attacks against enemy ground units?

A. No, nor may they be fired upon by enemy AA units using Opportunity Fire. (Volume 12, #1)

33. Q.  When using the experimental field-of-fire limitations, must AA units abide by the FOF limitations?

A.  Yes, but note the FOF includes the hex they occupy. (Volume 12, #1)

34. Q.  In some situations, armament is not listed for the FB’s.  What do you use, rockets or bombs?

A.  Either, at your option, before players set up their units (XIV.B.6., p.14). (Volume 12, #1)

35. Q.  When aircraft attack on targets on slopes, hilltops, etc., is their AS halved?

A. No. (Volume 12, #1)

36. Q.  May aircraft sight or spot units located in towns or woods hexes that have not fired and are not adjacent to friendly units?

A.  No. (Volume 12, #1)

SITUATIONS

37. Q: SITUATION #11: May the Belgian and American units fire outside of their sector boundaries even though they may not move outside those boundaries?

A: Yes, the restrictions concern movement only. (Volume 12, #1)

38. Q: SITUATION #11: Is the American sector (in which he must achieve a 3-1 superiority) boards C and D combined, despite the fact he deploys only on board D?

A: Yes (Volume 12, #1)

39. Q. SITUATION #14: When the special rules state, “Allied engineers may not attempt bridge demolition until German units are within five hexes,” does this refer to the commencement of the four turn procedure or the die roll for actual destruction?

A.  “Demolition attempts” refers to the actual die roll. (Volume 12, #1)

40. Q. SITUATION #14: May German units on board C move into half-hex C-T-11 (which it shares with board D)?

A.  NO.  The prohibition concerning re-entry onto board D also includes the half-hexes on that board. (Volume 12, #1)

41. Q. The rules say that you cannot set up on half-hexes.  Does this apply to sea hexes in the invasion scenarios?

A. No!  It refers to the half hexes in the middle of the playing area.  Units spend only one turn on the sea hexes in any case. (Volume 12, #1)

MISCELLANEOUS

42. Q. What are the “unloading” costs when dropping off German units in a Panzerblitz Assault (optional rule D.)?

A.  There are no MP penalties when executing a Panzerblitz Assault. (Volume 12, #1) 

43. *Q.  On the UFT (p. 21) what does the dot in the Nebelwerfer’s artillery facing column signify?

A.  It signifies it should be a “C” there instead of the dot. (Volume 12, #1)

44. Q.  Are the strengths, movements allowances, etc., of PANZER LEADER and PANZERBLITZ counters the same so they are, in effect, interchangeable?

A.  More or less … (Volume 12, #1)

45. Q.  Can ground units spot for air units by being adjacent to enemy units?

A.  No. (Volume 12, #1)

46. Q.  Can the German fire at any planes in range during the Allied air phase – or only those FB’s which are attacking?

A.  They can fire at any plane in range during the Allied air phase. (Volume 12, #1)

47. Q.  Which carrier rule takes precedence; A.) that a unit on a Bren can be attacked separately with a DF of 1 because the Bren is an armored unit, or B.) that the Bren’s defense factor (2) must be used for both passenger and carrier combined?

A. B (Volume 12, #1)

48. Q.  If Indirect Fire orders have been written in the advance for a turn, the unit can still hold its fire, but can it move if it does not fire?

A.  Yes. (Volume 12, #1)

49. Q.  Suppose a unit is in hex Y, and another unit moves into hex Y and at that instant is hit by Opportunity Fire.  Can it be attacked separate from the other units in the hex?

A.  Yes, unless it is in a town hex. (Volume 12, #1)

50. Q. Can a turreted AFV, which has fired (thereby using half of its MF without moving), be fired upon immediately by Opportunity Fire?

A. No. (Volume 12, #3)

51. Q. If several units are on the same woods or town hex and one of them fires, are all of the units in that hex spotted by an opposing unit with a clear LOS?

A. No – in the case of woods only the firer is spotted.  But direct fire attacks on towns must still be made against all units in the hex even though only 1 was spotted.  Of course, Indirect Fire can be called down on even just 1 spotted unit and must be evenly divided among all units in the hex. (Volume 12, #3)

52. Q. May a passenger unit on a truck or wagon spot an enemy unit?

A. No. (Volume 12, #3)

53. Q. Suppose an anti-tank gun fires in turn 1 and is spotted.  On turn 2 it is loaded onto a halftrack but does not leave the hex.  Are both the halftrack and gun now spotted?

A. Yes. (Volume 12, #4)

54. Q. During Opportunity Fire may more than 1 unit fire (and combine attack factors) against the same moving enemy piece?

A. Yes – as long as ¼ of the Movement Factors  of the target has been expended in the LOS of each firing unit at the point where the attack is made. (Volume 12, #4)

55. Q. May a unit whose LOS has been obscured by a SSC direct fire at a target spotted by another friendly unit?

A. No. (Volume 12, #5)

56. Q. May the turn an engineer unit unloads count as the 1st turn of a 4 turn sequence for building a block or demolition work?

A. Yes. (Volume 12, #5)

57. Q. Can German AFV’s carry 81mm mortars or “I” type weapons?

A. No. (Volume 12, #5)

58. Q. Can an AFV overrun at odds worse than 1 to 4 for positional reasons (i.e. to gain entrance to terrain behind the defender?)

A. Not in PL (Volume 12, #5)

59. Q. Assume 3 wrecks and a block on a bridge.  Can you move across it?

A.  No - the situation card for #20 has been revised however to prevent this from happening. (Volume 12, #5)

60. Q. Can a unit other than the original spotter act as a spotter to prevent “Scatter” when the original spotter is no longer present and if no – can you have more than one original spotter designated?

A. No – Yes. (Volume 12, #5)

61. Q. Assume a landing unit is dispersed on a beach.  Does it undisperse in time to move off the beach hex before another unit lands or will they continue to stack up dispersed units as long as a unit lands in that hex each turn?

A. Units dispersed by Op. Fire will undisperse at the end of their current turn so that they may move off before the next wave lands.  Units dispersed in the German player’s turn however do not become undispersed until the end of the next Allied movement phase and therefore will be in the beach hex, causing the next wave to land dispersed.  However, units dispersed in this manner become undispersed at the end of their turn and may therefore move off the beach next turn before the next wave of the assaulting force. (Volume 12, #6)

62. Q. May an infantry unit landing on the beach move 1 hex off or is its movement allowance expended in landing?

A. The latter. (Volume 12, #6)

63. Q. May more than 1 unit land on a beach hex in the same turn if they come from different adjacent sea hexes?

A. Yes, but they will be dispersed. (Volume 12, #6)

64. Q. Can a unit starting on a block load or unload in that hex?

A. Yes. (Volume 12, #6)

65. Q. May a unit remain indefinitely in a stream hex without rolling the die after it has entered it?

A. Yes. (Volume 12, #6)

66. Q. May a unit move from stream hex to stream hex?

A. Yes – but it must successfully roll a die for each new stream hex entered.  Failure would leave it in its original stream hex. (Volume 12, #6)

67. Q. May a spotted unit move out of its spotted location and then back into it in the same turn and become unspotted if a spotting unit is not adjacent?

A. No, it remains spotted. (Volume 12, #6)

68. Q. Assume an armored unit conducts an overrun in such a manner that it ends its movement in the same hex it started from.  Will the unit be considered spotted by non-adjacent enemy units at the completion of its movement phase?

A. It will be spotted by any non-dispersed, non-adjacent combat unit which has a LOS to both the overrun hex and the end of movement hex. (Volume 20, #6)

69. Q. Does the dispersal or destruction of an engineer unit’s designated vehicle have any effect on the engineer’s attempt to destroy a bridge or to create / remove a block?

A. The engineer’s capability are not affected by the dispersal of the vehicular unit, but the latter’s destruction eliminates the engineer’s ability to henceforth perform these functions (although it does not effect their mine clearing ability). (Volume 20, #6)

70. Q. The Allied M16 is indicated as being an “I” type weapon on the counter but is listed as an “H” type in the Unit Function Table.  Which is correct?

A. It is an “I” type weapon. (Volume 22, #3)

71. Q. May an armored unit set up in a hex that has all green hex sides and no road?

A. No. A unit may not set up in a hex that it could not enter during play, unless the scenario specifically states otherwise. (Volume 22, #3)

72. Q. May a non-Vehicular unit set up under a bridge?

A. Yes, simply place a bridge counter on top of the unit declared to be under the bridge. (Volume 22, #3)

73. Q. May a unit under a bridge use CAT against an enemy unit on the bridge?

A. No. (Volume 22, #3)

74. Q. May a unit move from under a bridge directly onto that bridge?

A. No. It first must enter a non-stream hex. (Volume 22, #3)

75. Q. May a ground unit spot for an air unit?

A. No. (Volume 22, #3)

76. Q. If one unit fires from a woods or town hex and is spotted, may other unspotted units in that hex then be fired upon?

A. All units in that hex would be vulnerable to indirect fire, which would have to both divide its attack factor normally among them (rule VII.C.10.a-b) and treat them as armored targets.  However, only the firing (i.e. spotted) unit could be attacked by direct fire.  Note that if more than one spotted unit is together in a town hex, their defense factors must still be combined (and treated as an armored target) against a direct fire attack.  Any unspotted units in that hex would be ignored for that attack. (Volume 22, #3)

77. Q. May an overrunning unit use the road movement rate prior to entering the target hex?

A. No. It cannot use the road movement rate during that turn. (Volume 22, #3)

78. Q. May a unit that is spotting move to a hex with a blocked LOS and then to a hex with a clear LOS, retaining spotting of the same unit with no penalty?

A. Not if the moving unit was the only friendly unit that had a LOS to the enemy unit. (Volume 22, #3)

79. Q.  If an engineer is destroyed while participating in the bridge demolition sequence, must another engineer unit wishing to blow the bridge start the sequence again at the beginning?

A.Yes. (Volume 22, #3)

80. Q.  If an engineer’s designated vehicle is eliminated, can it use another engineer’s vehicle?

A. Yes; however the new vehicle cannot be assigned to the engineer until the owning player’s next turn. (Volume 22, #3)

81. Q. When an engineer moves onto an inverted mine counter must it undergo a mine attack?

A. Not if that engineer unit was the one clearing the minefield. (Volume 22, #3)

82. Q. While clearing a minefield hex, can an engineer move to another hex adjacent to that minefield without interrupting its removal sequence?

A. No! Except for spotting, any engineering task it is engaged in (rules XA, XB and XC4) is its sole allowed action during the time period of that task.  If it interrupts its task to perform some other action (such as moving or firing), it would have to begin that task anew.  Of course, it is still allowed to move as required by the bridge demolition rules. (Volume 22, #3)

Ryan’s Errata

I recently purchased a brand new copy of PANZER LEADER.  This allowed me to compare the unit counters provided with the game and what is listed in the Unit Function Table in the back of the rulebook.  The following discrepancies were noted:

Unit Function Table Corrections:

R1:  Only 1, not 2, Allied 76 mm Towed Guns are provided in the game.  Unit Code of 0220 is on this counter.

R2:  9, not 6, Allied trucks are provided in the game.  Unit Codes of 2201 to 2209 are on these counters.

R3:  9, not 8, Allied Sherman (UK) Tanks are provided in the game. Unit Codes of 7511 to 7519 are on these counters.
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